
STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKSHOP 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2019 

10:00 A.M. 

The Martinelli Event Center  
3585 Greenville Road, Livermore, California 

Scott Haggerty, Chair – Sblend Sblendorio, Vice Chair – John Marchand – Jerry Thorne – Nate Miley – Ralph Johnson – Ayn 
Wieskamp,  David Haubert, Alternate – Richard Valle, Alternate – Georgean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate – Tom Pico, Alternate 

10:00 A.M.   Call to Order – Chair
- Pledge of Allegiance
- Roll Call
- Public Comment

10:05 A.M.   Business Items – Executive Officer 
a. Contract Extension with QK Associates
b. Memorandum of Understanding with Alameda LAFCO and Community Development Agency
c. Executive Officer Performance Review

10:30 A.M.   LAFCO 101 Presentation – Bill Chiat 

11:15 A.M.   Discussion of Organizational Goals and Accomplishments – Participants 
- Review of Strategic Plan 2018-2020, Work Plan, and Study Schedule
- Successes, Changes, Trends, Dissatisfactions over Last Year

11:45 A.M.   How Does LAFCO Want to Be Known? – Bill Chiat 
- Alameda LAFCO’s Role in the County and Desired Public Value
- Municipal Service Reviews and Spheres of Influences

12:15 P.M.   Lunch 

12:45 P.M.   Identify and Prioritize Key Objectives – Participants 
- Short-term Priorities and Long-Term Goals

cal Age c  Form  C mm

1



ALAMEDA LAFCO 
December 16, 2019, Strategic Planning Workshop 

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

 

 
1:10 P.M.   The Next Iteration of the Strategic Plan – Bill Chiat 

- New Work Plan and Strategic Areas 
- Discussion of Capacity and Resources to Advance Goals 
- Establish Outcomes and Timeframes 

 
 
2:00 P.M.    Closing Comments and Reflections – Bill Chiat 
 
 
2:15 P.M.    Adjournment  
  
 

  

2



     
  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
1221 Oak Street, Suite 555 
Oakland, California 94612 
T:  510.272.3894 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

John Marchand, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Jerry Thorne, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
David Haubert, Alternate  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Tom Pico, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Scott Haggerty, Chair  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Richard Valle, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKSHOP  
December 16, 2019   

Business Item No. 1a 

 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners   
   
FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Second Agreement with QK Associates for Professional Consulting Services  
 
 

This is a request for the Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) to consider 
amending the existing agreement with the firm QK Associates.  
 
Information 
 
At Alameda LAFCO’s May 7, 2018 regular meeting, the Commission approved an 18-month contract 
with QK Associates to prepare a Municipal Service Review (MSR) on water, wastewater, flood 
control, and stormwater services and related sphere of influence updates. The current agreement 
expired on November 30, 2019. The proposed second amendment extends the contract for an additional 
six-month period with an expiration date of May 31, 2020. The contract amount in the proposed second 
agreement would not increase and would remain the same. Funding for the service is available for the 
current 2019-2020 fiscal year.  
 
Due to delays with the contract negotiation and the data collection phase, QK Associates needs 
additional time to prepare the report. A draft report is expected to be presented to the Commission at 
its January 16th regular meeting.  
 
Discussion 
 
This item is for the Commission to extend the overall agreement through May 31, 2020 with no 
additional associated costs. The proposed second agreement may be found in Attachment 1 of the staff 
report along with the current contract as Attachment 2. 
 
Alternatives for Action  
 
The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  
 
Alternative One (Recommended):  
Accept and file the report as presented and provide direction as needed to staff with respect to any 
related matters for future consideration.  
 

3



Alameda LAFCO 
Strategic Planning Workshop 
Business Item No. 1a 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

 
 
Alternative Two:  
Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction for more information 
as needed. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  
 
Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 
  
Attachments: 
1. Proposed Second Agreement 
2. Current Contract  

4



Procurement Contract No. 17722 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT 

This Second Amendment to Agreement (“Second Amendment”) is made by the 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) and Quad Knopf Inc., dba QK (QK) 
with respect to that certain agreement entered by them on September 12, 2018 and that certain 
First Amendment to Contract dated 8/16/2019, (collectively referred to herein as the 
“Agreement”) pursuant to which QK provides professional consulting services related to 
completion of the State-mandated sphere of influence updates and municipal service reviews for 
water, wastewater, flood control, and stormwater services to Alameda LAFCO.  

For valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, LAFCO and QK agree to amend the Agreement in the following respects: 

1. The term of the Agreement is currently scheduled to expire on November 30, 2019.  The
parties mutually agree that more time is necessary to complete the project including public
hearings. Therefore, the parties mutually agree to extend the current term for six additional
months from the current end date of November 30, 2019.

2. The term of the Agreement is extended from June 1, 2018 through November 30, 2019
to June 1, 2018 through May 31, 2020.

3. There is no change in the Agreement amount of not to exceed $80,000, and any current
balance will continue through this Amendment.

4. Except as otherwise stated in this Second Amendment, the terms and provisions of this
Amendment will be considered to be effective as of the date this Second Amendment is executed
by LAFCO (“Effective Date”).

5. Except as expressly modified by this Second Amendment to the Alameda LAFCO and
QK Agreement, all of the terms and conditions of the Contract are and remain in full force and
effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment to the 
Agreement as of the day and year first above written. 

ALAMEDA LAFCO QUAD Knopf Inc., dba QK 

By:______________________________  
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer  
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission 

By:_____________________________ 
Signature  

Attachment 1

5



      
  
Name:__________________________  

(Printed)  
      

Title:___________________________  
  

      
Date:___________________________  
Address: PO Box 3699, Visalia, CA 93278  
  

       
  
  
   

  By signing above, signatory warrants and 
represents that he/she executed this 
Agreement in his/her authorized capacity and 
that by his/her signature on this Agreement, 
he/she or the entity upon behalf of which 
he/she acted, executed this Agreement  

  
  
 

6



Attachment 2

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



     
  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
1221 Oak Street, Suite 555 
Oakland, California 94612 
T:  510.272.3894 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

John Marchand, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Jerry Thorne, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
David Haubert, Alternate  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Tom Pico, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Scott Haggerty, Chair  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Richard Valle, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKSHOP  
December 16, 2019   

Business Item No. 1b 

 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   
FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Memorandum of Understanding | 
 Alameda LAFCO and Community Development Agency  
 
 

The Commission will consider approving a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) and the Community Development Agency 
(CDA) for interim administrative office space located at 224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110, in 
Hayward, until agreement for long-term space is executed.  
 
Information 
 
At the Commission’s May 29, 2019 special meeting, the membership approved a MOU agreement 
between Alameda LAFCO and the County of Alameda that notably included, among other items, 
Alameda LAFCO’s own office space separate from County agencies or departments, but located within 
County-owned or leased facilities. As part of the agreement, Alameda LAFCO and the CDA shall enter 
into a MOU to memorialize the location and size of the interim space as a first step, and then LAFCO 
and the General Services Agency (GSA) shall enter into a license agreement to memorialize the 
location and size of the long-term space and related changes.  
 
Discussion 
 
The CDA has agreed to sublease the offices located in 224 West Winton Avenue, Suite 110 in Hayward 
to the Commission starting January 1, 2020. The offices are currently vacant and will be used as interim 
office space until an agreement for long-term space is executed. Both agencies’ staff and counsel have 
reviewed the proposed MOU. The County of Alameda Board of Supervisors is scheduled to formally 
take action on the MOU at its scheduled December 17th meeting.  
 
The agreement outlines in consideration for the use of the interim space, Alameda LAFCO will pay 
the CDA a use fee in an amount of $2,667 per month or $32,000 annually. The use fee shall include 
costs associated with LAFCO’s use of the interim space, including building services such as 
telecommunications, furniture, kitchen and restroom facilities, and building security. The CDA may 
adjust the fee on an annual basis to reflect increases in County and CDA costs directly and indirectly 
attributable to the interim space and LAFCO’s use of the interim space.  
 

21



Alameda LAFCO 
Strategic Planning Workshop 
Business Item No. 1b 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e

The Commission budgeted $25,000 for the new interim space in its adopted budget for the current 
fiscal year along with a $50,000 contingency to cover any additional costs. Staff will also be meeting 
with the County’s Information Technology Department (ITD) to reduce any related charges for 
telecommunication services. LAFCO currently pays ITD approximately $27,000 annually for such 
services.  

The proposed agreement outlines LAFCO’s clear direction from its MOU with the County, approved 
at its May 2019 special meeting, to execute an MOU between the CDA for interim space.  

Alternatives for Action 

The following alternatives are available to the Commission: 

Alternative One (Recommended): 
Approve the proposed MOU agreement with the CDA for interim space at 224 West Winton Avenue, 
Suite 110 in Hayward.   

Alternative Two: 
Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction for more information 
as needed. 

Recommendation 

It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One. 

Respectfully, 

Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 

Attachments: 
1. Proposed Interim Space MOU Agreement with CDA

cc: Susan S. Muranishi, County Administrator 
Sandra Rivera, Community Development Agency 
Chris Bazaar, Community Development Agency 

22



Page 1 of 4 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

SPACE-USE FOR ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the Alameda County Local 
Agency Formation Commission (“LAFCo”) and the Alameda County Community Development Agency 
(“CDA”) (collectively, “the Parties”), and shall be effective upon the latest date of execution below 
(“Effective Date”). 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code section 56380, LAFCo and the County of Alameda 
(“County”) entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) on or about June 18, 2019 through 
which the County agreed to supply LAFCo with necessary quarters, equipment, supplies and personnel; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the MOU provides that the County shall provide LAFCo with office space separate 
from County agencies or departments; and 

WHEREAS, the MOU further provides that the County and LAFCo have identified interim space in 
Suite 110 at the County’s office building located at 224 West Winton Avenue in Hayward (“the Winton 
Building”) (“the Interim Space”) and authorizes County’s CDA to enter into a memorandum of 
understanding with LAFCo regarding the location and size of the Interim Space and related charges for 
LAFCo’s occupancy of the Interim Space; and, 

WHEREAS, the MOU authorizes LAFCo and County’s General Services Agency (“GSA”) to enter 
into a license agreement regarding long-term office space located in Suite 164 of the Winton Building 
(“the Long-Term Space”) that the County and LAFCo mutually recognize will require tenant fit up and is 
not presently suitable for LAFCo’s occupancy; 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed as follows: 

1. Controlling Agreement: Except as otherwise provided herein, all defined terms in the MOU shall
apply to this Agreement.  If any conflict exists between this Agreement and the MOU, the MOU
shall control.  This Agreement may not be construed in a way that contradicts the terms of the
MOU.

2. Commencement Date:  The Commencement Date shall be January 1, 2020, at which time the
Interim Space shall otherwise be ready for occupancy.  LAFCo may elect to occupy the Interim
Space in advance of all furniture and equipment being delivered and/or installed, in which case
the Commencement Date shall be that earlier date of occupancy.  LAFCo shall not be compelled
to take occupancy in advance of January 1, 2020.

3. Term: This Agreement shall remain in effect from the Commencement Date until the earlier of
termination of the MOU or execution of a license agreement for the Long-Term Space.

4. Interim Space: The Interim Space consists of Suite 110 at the Winton Building, which constitutes
approximately 589 square feet of office space and 1,037 square feet of common areas.  LAFCo
shall have the exclusive right to use the Interim Space for its administrative office, subject to the
County’s superior right of ownership.  LAFCo shall also have the right to use the common areas
of the Winton Building along with other County agencies and departments, third party Winton
Building occupants and the general public.  CDA shall use best efforts to limit its use of the

Attachment 1

23



 
Page 2 of 4 

 

Interim Space to repair and maintenance, and shall do so after providing reasonable advance 
notice when possible.  LAFCo shall have access to the Interim Space twenty-four (24) hours a 
day, seven (7) days a week, subject to the County’s and CDA’s rules and restrictions and the 
terms of this Agreement.   

5. Use Fee:  During the Term, in consideration for its use of the Interim Space, LAFCo shall pay CDA 
in arrears on the 10th day of each month a Use Fee in an amount of $2,667 ($32k/annum) per 
month.  If the Commencement Date is other than the first of the month, the Use Fee shall be 
appropriately prorated.  The amount of the Use Fee shall be calculated in the same manner as is 
the Use Fee charged (actual charges) to County agencies and departments in the Winton 
Building.  The Use Fee shall include costs associated with LAFCo’s use of the Interim Space, 
including building services, as described below in paragraph 7.  CDA may adjust the Use Fee on 
an annual basis to reflect increases in County and CDA costs directly and indirectly attributable 
to the Interim Space and LAFCo’s use of the Interim Space.  CDA shall provide an annual notice 
to LAFCo of an increase in the Use Fee reasonably in advance of any increase. 

6. Parking:  Parking will be made available to LAFCo staff on the same basis that it is to CDA 
employees: by enrolling in payroll deduction. It can take up to two pay periods to receive the 
parking permit issued by the General Services Agency (GSA). Until it is received, LAFCo staff can 
pay for meters in the front or the rear of the building.  Parking for LAFCo guests is available in 
the metered parking areas. 

7. Services:  CDA shall provide LAFCo the following usual and typical building services: HVAC, 
electricity, gas, janitorial, waste removal, water, and repair and maintenance of the Interim 
Space to the standard as of the Commencement Date.  CDA shall also provide building security 
and maintain, repair and operate the sewer, elevator, toilets and common areas of the Winton 
Building, access to meeting and conference rooms, as well as to kitchen and toilet facilities. 
Conference meeting rooms are available by reservation and the reservation manager may, from 
time to time, cancel any reservation if an unexpected or greater need of CDA requires it. In the 
event a reservation is cancelled, as much advance notice as allowed by circumstances will be 
given. Services shall be provided on the same terms, to the same standard as for other 
occupants of the Winton Building.  The costs for these services shall be included in the User Fee. 

8. Furniture and Equipment:  The Interim Space shall be furnished with such furniture and 
equipment (listed below) as reasonably required by LAFCo and agreed to by CDA (“Initial 
Furniture and Equipment”).  The cost of providing the Initial Furniture and Equipment is 
included within the Use Fee.  The parties agree that LAFCo will use existing CDA or County 
surplus furniture or equipment or procure new furniture or equipment through the County’s 
purchasing agent.  If LAFCo acquires furniture or equipment in addition to the Initial Furniture 
and Equipment, LAFCo shall pay CDA the actual cost that would be charged for the furniture or 
equipment to County agencies or departments.  All furniture and equipment supplied by or 
purchased by CDA for LAFCo’s use in the Interim Space shall remain the property of the County; 
however, to the extent it is not affixed in or to the Interim Space, CDA shall not prohibit LAFCo 
from relocating any furniture or equipment purchased by County with LAFCo funds to the Long-
Term Space. 

a. Interim office space furniture and equipment: 
i. Small size wood round table (1)  

ii. Medium size wood rectangular conference table (1) 
iii. Large wood rectangular conference table (1) 

24



 
Page 3 of 4 

 

iv. Leather rolling office chairs (6) 
v. Cloth office chairs (3) 

vi. Rolling office desk chair (1) 
vii. Compartment filing wood cabinets (all with keys) (6) 

viii. Medium size u-shape wood desk (1) 
ix. Large size u-shape wood desk with hutch (1) 
x. Medium size wood bookshelf with 3 compartments (1)  

xi. Large size wood bookshelf with 4 compartments (1)  
xii. Wood console table with 2 small and 1 large compartment (1) 

xiii. Extension cord (1) 
xiv. Small size trash bins (2) 
xv. Small size recycle bin (1) 

xvi. Office desk telephones (2) 

9. Telecommunications:  CDA shall supply the Interim Space with building standard network 
connections for telephone, internet, network and facsimile and the actual costs of such services 
shall be included in the Use Fee.  

10. Long-Term Space:  The Parties have identified Suite 164 at the Winton Building as long-term 
space for LAFCo’s use and occupancy.  CDA understands that it is the County and LAFCo’s mutual 
intention to make ready the Long-Term Space and execute a license agreement to permit LAFCo 
to relocate to the Long-Term Space as soon as may be reasonably possible.    

11. Liability:  The liability, defense, indemnity and insurance provisions of the MOU shall extend to 
the Agreement. 

12. Notices:  Notices for purpose of this Agreement shall be sent in accordance with paragraph 13 of 
the MOU. 

13. Signage: CDA shall include LAFCo in the Winton Building directory and permit LAFCo to place 
signage on the entrance to the Interim Space, subject to CDA’s reasonable prior written 
approval of the content, location, and duration of posting of such signage LAFCo shall pay for 
the actual cost of the signage.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the dates appearing 
below their respective signatures, each signatory being duly authorized. 
 
ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION ALAMEDA COUNTY COMMUNITY 
COMMISSION:  DEVELOPMENT AGENCY: 
 
 
By:_______________________________ By:                                                                                                            
     Rachel Jones                Chris Bazar 
  Executive Officer  Director 
 
Date_______________ Date                                 
 

  Approved as to Form  Approved as to Form 

25



 
Page 4 of 4 

 

   
 
By_________________ 
       Andrew J. Massey 
       LAFCo Legal Counsel 
   

DONNA R. ZIEGLER 
County Counsel 
   
 
By_________________ 
        Andrea L. Weddle 
        Chief Assistant County Counsel 

 
 

 

 

26



     
  

 

LAFCO 
Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission   
 

 
 

Administrative Office 
Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
1221 Oak Street, Suite 555 
Oakland, California 94612 
T:  510.272.3894 
www.acgov.org/lafco 
 

John Marchand, Regular 
City of Livermore 
 
Jerry Thorne, Regular 
City of Pleasanton  
 
David Haubert, Alternate  
City of Dublin 
 

Ralph Johnson, Regular  
Castro Valley Sanitary District 
 
Ayn Wieskamp, Regular  
East Bay Regional Park Dsitrict 
 
Geogean Vonheeder-Leopold, Alternate 
Dublin San Ramon Services District 

 

Sblend Sblendorio, Regular 
Public Member  
 
Tom Pico, Alternate 
Public Member 

 

Scott Haggerty, Chair  
County of Alameda  
 
Nate Miley, Regular  
County of Alameda  
 
Richard Valle, Alternate 
County of Alameda  
 

 

 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING WORKSHOP  
December 16, 2019   

Business Item No. 1c 

 
TO:  Alameda  Commissioners  
   
FROM: Rachel Jones, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Executive Officer Performance Review  
 
 

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) will consider updating its bylaws by 
approving a proposed policy on performance reviews for the Executive Officer position following the 
adoption of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) at a special meeting held on May 29, 2019 
between Alameda LAFCO and the County of Alameda for administrative and support services.   
 
Background 
 
At the Commission’s special meeting held on May 29, 2019, the membership amended its MOU with 
the County that incorporated processes to best reflect LAFCO’s current operational needs. As a result 
of the renegotiated MOU, it provided the LAFCO Commission the opportunity to present comments to 
the County Administrator in regard to the Executive Officer’s performance evaluation.  
 
The MOU agreement states the following:  
 

The LAFCO Commission will be given the opportunity to provide comments to the County 
Administrator annually for the Executive Officer’s performance evaluation and the Commission 
may provide input or feedback to the County Administrator or her designees, with respect to the 
performance of the individual in the Executive Officer position at any other time. 

 
Discussion 
 
Staff recommends the Commission follow a framework that outlines a performance review process for 
the Executive Officer position. The proposed policy draft outlines a structure in which the Commission 
can provide comments to the County Administrator and in return, the Commission can conduct a 
performance review with the Executive Officer. The proposed policy may be found in Attachment 1.  
 
The proposed policy draft allows for an annual performance review, a performance review form 
supplied by the County that each Commissioner shall complete and forward to the Commission Chair, 
and the opportunity for any commissioner or the Executive Officer to request the use of an outside 
facilitator. Staff proposes that the first Executive Officer performance review shall be conducted at its 

27



Alameda LAFCO 
Strategic Planning Workshop 
Business Item No. 1c 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

2 | P a g e  

next regular meeting during closed session scheduled for January 12th of next year. The review period 
is to be considered from June 4, 2018 to June 4, 2019.  
 
The overarching goal of the proposed draft is establishing a context to improve and simplify Alameda 
LAFCO’s operational needs with a consistent review process.  
 
Alternatives for Action  
 
The following alternatives are available to the Commission:  
 
Alternative One (Recommended):  
Update Alameda LAFCO’s bylaws by approving the draft policy with or without amendments on the 
executive officer performance review process and commence the first performance review at 
Alameda LAFCO’s next regular meeting scheduled for January 12, 2020.  
 
Alternative Two:  
Continue consideration of the report to a future meeting and provide direction to staff for more 
information as needed.  
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended the Commission proceed with Alternative Action One.  
 
 
Respectfully,  

 
Rachel Jones 
Executive Officer 
  
Attachments: 

1. Draft Policy on the Executive Officer Performance Review Process 

 

28



By-laws  
and  

Budget & Operating Policies 

Alameda 

LAFCO
ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 

1221 OAK STREET, SUITE 555   *   OAKLAND, CA 94612 
(510) 271-5142           FAX (510) 272-3784 

WWW.ACGOV.ORG/LAFCO 

Adopted:   May 2002 
Amended/Updated: November 2003 

January 2008 
November 2008 
September 2009 
November 2012 
May 2014 
March 2015 
July 2016 
November 2017 

Attachment 1

29



Alameda LAFCo   COMMISSION BY-LAWS, BUDGET & OPERATING POLICIES 
 

 1   

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. COMMISSION ORGANIZATION AND ROLE ............................................................... 2 

2. MEETINGS AND CONDUCT OF BUSINESS ............................................................... 4 

3. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE ..................................... 7 

4. BUDGET ........................................................................................................................ 8 

5. LAFCO FEES .............................................................................................................. 10 

6. OPERATIONS ............................................................................................................. 11 
 

Deleted: 9

30



Alameda LAFCo   COMMISSION BY-LAWS, BUDGET & OPERATING POLICIES 
 

 2   

 
1. COMMISSION ORGANIZATION AND ROLE 
 
1.1 Governing Law   

The Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) is governed by the Cortese-
Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (CKH), Sections 56000 et 
seq. of the California Government Code, as amended.  In any conflict between the CKH 
and these bylaws, the CKH shall prevail. 
 

1.2 Guidelines, Policies and Procedures   
Alameda LAFCo has adopted guidelines, policies and procedures to assist the Commission 
with far and consistent implementation of the CKH and to provide information to prospective 
applicants and the public.  In any conflict between the CKH and these guidelines, policies 
and procedures, the CKH shall prevail. 

 
1.3 Mission   

Alameda LAFCo works with integrity to protect the quality of life for the citizens of Alameda 
County by ensuring that government agencies provide efficient municipal services; 
balancing infrastructure needs for sustainable growth; and conserving the environment and 
limited resources including prime agricultural and open space lands. 

 
1.4 Strategic Plan   

Alameda LAFCo has adopted a strategic plan that incorporates local circumstances and 
conditions to guide the Commission in fulfilling its legislative mandate including 
requirements for service reviews, sphere of influence updates and other mandated 
functions.  The Commission’s strategic plan will be reviewed and updated periodically.   
 

1.5 Membership   
Alameda LAFCo shall be composed of seven regular members and four alternate 
members.  Selection of members shall be done pursuant to Government Code Section 
56325.   
 

1.6 Commissioner Removal   
The Commission may recommend to the appointing authority that a member be removed 
for the following reasons: 

Ø The unexcused absence of that member for three (3) consecutive meetings or more 
than half of the meetings in any twelve-month period. 

Ø Malfeasance of office or dereliction of duty by that member. 
 
1.7 Role of Commissioners   

Although members represent constituents groups, each Commissioner is independent 
when weighing and reviewing information and when making determinations.  
Commissioners shall represent the public as a whole and not solely the interests of the 
appointing authority.  Alternate Commissioners are encouraged to take an active role in 
Alameda LAFCo business including discussions and deliberations on project proposals. 
Alternate Commissioners may only participate in closed sessions when sitting in and voting 
for an absent Commissioner. 
 

1.8 Terms 
The term of each commissioner shall be four years. The expiration date of each 
Commissioner’s term is the first Monday in May. Commissioners serve until the 
appointment and qualification of a successor or until removed by the appointing body.  A 
Commissioner is required to vacate their seat if he or she ceases to hold the originating 

31



Alameda LAFCo   COMMISSION BY-LAWS, BUDGET & OPERATING POLICIES 
 

 3   

office.  All appointed members may be reappointed to an unlimited number of consecutive 
terms provided they meet the membership criteria for that body. The Commission Clerk will 
administer the Oath of Office at the installation of a new member.   

 
1.9 Officers   

Regular members of the Commission elect a Commission Chair and Vice Chair at the May 
meeting.  The newly elected officers shall assume office at the next Commission meeting.  
Unless otherwise determined by the Commission, the Chair and Vice Chair will each serve 
one two-year term, and, commencing November 2008, rotation of Officers shall be as 
follows:  Special District, County, Public, and City.  However, if the Chair becomes vacant 
mid-term, the Vice Chair shall be given the opportunity to serve as Chair for the remainder 
of the term.  If the Vice Chair declines, the vacancy shall be filled for the remainder of the 
term by election at the next regular meeting following occurrence of the vacancy.    

 
1.10 Commissioner Compensation 

Commissioners are not employees of LAFCo and receive no salary or employee benefits.  
Each Commissioner receives a per diem allowance for participation at each regular and 
special meeting and is reimbursed for reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in 
performing the duties of their office.  

 
1.11 LAFCo Funding 

Most Alameda LAFCo expenses are funded by equal contributions from Alameda County, 
its cities and its special districts.  LAFCo also recovers a portion of actual proposal 
processing costs by charging fees for certain services (See LAFCo Schedule of Fees and 
Charges).  
 

1.12 Staffing   
LAFCo shall independently appoint the Executive Officer, staff and legal counsel.  LAFCo 
may contract with Alameda County for the provision of staff, offices, equipment, and 
supplies as permitted in its budget and policies.  The Commission may use other means for 
acquiring personnel, services and supplies as deemed appropriate by the Commission. 
 

1.13 CALAFCO   
Alameda LAFCo shall be a member of the California Association of Local Agency 
Formation Commissions (CALAFCO) and will participate in the State association. 
 

1.14 Legislation   
The Executive Officer is authorized to submit position letters that do not support unfunded 
mandates in accordance with the California Association of Local Agency Formation 
Commissions’ (CALAFCO) annual legislative platform upon consultation with the Chair or 
Vice Chair when time does not allow approval by the Commission at a regular meeting. 
 

1.15 Public Member Selection Process  
The regular and alternate public members of Alameda LAFCo are selected by the other 
members of the Commission.  At least four affirmative votes are required to appoint the 
public members, and there must be at least one vote from each of the other appointing 
authority categories: City, County and Special District. 
 
Unless the Commission gives alternative direction, the following procedure is used to recruit 
and select public members:   
 

• The Executive Officer or Clerk shall notify the Commission in advance of a public member’s 
term expiration or when such seat becomes vacant.  

Formatted: Font: Bold

32



Alameda LAFCo   COMMISSION BY-LAWS, BUDGET & OPERATING POLICIES 
 

 4   

• The Commission may consider reappointment of a regular and/or alternate public member 
no more than twice.   Subsequently, the Commission will conduct its regular recruitment 
process as noted below. 

• The Commission Chair will appoint an ad hoc public member selection committee 
consisting of a City member, County member and Special District member. 

• The Clerk will provide notice of a vacancy to the clerk or secretary of the legislative body of 
each city, special district, and the county; will distribute the notice to local media outlets and 
place a display ad in one or more newspapers of general circulation; will post the notice at 
the LAFCo office and on the LAFCo website.  The notice shall include a summary of the 
qualifications for the position as specified in Government Code Section 56331 (e.g., can’t 
be an officer or employee of the county, city, or district).  

• Interested persons shall submit a written application form provided by LAFCo staff and 
return the form to the LAFCo office before the deadline. The deadline for applications shall 
be at least 21 days following the distribution of notice.  

• The Clerk shall make and distribute a roster of all applicants and their applications to the 
members of the ad hoc committee.  A Commissioner who identifies a conflict of interest with 
any of the applicants must either recuse him/herself or be replaced by another 
Commissioner from the same appointing category (e.g., a city member replaces a city 
member). 

• The ad hoc committee will evaluate applications, select candidates to interview, and 
conduct interviews of selected candidates. 

• The ad hoc committee will make a recommendation to the full Commission.   

• Alternatively, the ad hoc committee may recommend that any or all applicants be 
interviewed by the full Commission.  

• The Commission will make a selection as part of the agenda of the first regularly scheduled 
meeting following the application deadline.   

• If no candidate receives the required votes from the full Commission, then a new 
recruitment shall be conducted.   

• A candidate may withdraw an application before or after the application deadline. If a 
candidate withdraws an application after the deadline, the candidate shall not be 
considered for the appointment unless the Commission performs a new recruitment and the 
person reapplies.  

• When a regular public member vacancy occurs, the Commission may alternatively consider 
appointing the alternate public member to the regular public member seat.  If the alternate 
public member is so appointed, then the Commission will proceed with an alternate public 
member recruitment process.    

2. MEETINGS AND CONDUCT OF BUSINESS 
 

2.1. Regular Meetings   
Regular meetings are typically held on the second Thursday of every other month in the 
Dublin San Ramon Services District Board Room, 7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, California at 

33



Alameda LAFCo   COMMISSION BY-LAWS, BUDGET & OPERATING POLICIES 
 

 5   

2:00 p.m.  Meetings are scheduled for January, March, May, July, September and November.  
Meeting location and date may change depending on the nature of agenda items. 
 

2.2. Special Meetings   
A special Commission meeting may be requested by submitting a written request to the 
Executive Officer indicating the specific reason(s) for such a meeting.  The request will be 
considered at the next regularly scheduled meeting for which adequate notice can be 
provided.  If the request is granted, the applicant is responsible for all costs associated with 
the conduct of the special meeting.  The Chair, Vice Chair acting as Chair, or Commission 
may call special meetings if deemed necessary. 
 

2.3. Meeting Procedures   
Rosenberg’s Rules of Order is designated as the general guide for conducting meetings 
and will be used to resolve points of order.  Each agenda item is addressed as follows:  
Ø Chair clearly announces the agenda item number and states the agenda item subject.  
Ø Chair invites the appropriate person or persons to report on the item, including any 

recommendation that they might have. The appropriate person or persons may be the 
Chair, a member of the body, a staff person, or a committee chair charged with providing 
input on the agenda item. 

Ø Chair asks members of the body if they have any technical questions of clarification. At this 
point, members of the body may ask clarifying questions to the person or persons who 
reported on the item, and that person or persons should be given time to respond. 

Ø Chair invites public comments, or if appropriate at a formal meeting, should open the 
public meeting for public input. If numerous members of the public indicate a desire to 
speak to the subject, the Chair may limit the time of public speakers. At the conclusion of 
the public comments, the Chair announces that public input has concluded (or the public 
hearing as the case may be is closed). 

Ø Chair invites a motion and, if made, a second and announces the names of the members 
of the body who makes and seconds the motion.  

Ø Chair ensures that everyone understands the motion. This is done in one of three ways: 
(1) The Chair can ask the maker of the motion to repeat it. (2) The Chair can repeat the 
motion. (3) The Chair can ask the secretary or the clerk of the body to repeat the motion. 

Ø Chair invites discussion of the motion by the body. If there is no desired discussion, or 
after the discussion has ended, the Chair announces that the body will vote on the motion. 
If there has been no discussion or very brief discussion, then the vote on the motion 
should proceed immediately and there is no need to repeat the motion. If there has been 
substantial discussion, then it is normally best to make sure everyone understands the 
motion by repeating it. 

Ø Chair takes a vote. Simply asking for the “ayes”, and then asking for the “nays” normally 
does this. If members of the body do not vote, then they “abstain”. Unless the rules of the 
body provide otherwise then a simple majority determines whether the motion passes or is 
defeated. 

Ø Chair announces the result of the vote and should announce what action (if any) the body 
has taken. In announcing the result, the Chair should indicate the names of the members 
of the body, if any, who voted in the minority on the motion. This announcement might take 
the following form: “The motion passes by a vote of 3-2, with Smith and Jones dissenting. 
We have passed the motion requiring 10 days notice for all future meetings of this body.” 
 

2.4. Meeting Agenda   
A written agenda shall be prepared for each meeting which lists the various items being 
considered including the title, a brief description of the item, the requested action and LAFCo 
staff's recommendation, if applicable.  The agenda will be provided to LAFCo’s established 

34



Alameda LAFCo   COMMISSION BY-LAWS, BUDGET & OPERATING POLICIES 
 

 6   

agenda mailing list, including appropriate media, project applicants and proponents, and 
interested parties requesting notice for a specific hearing. 
 

2.5. Order of Business   
Commission agendas shall include the following items: 
Ø Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
Ø Roll Call  
Ø Public Comment 
Ø Closed Session (if needed) 
Ø Approval of Minutes 
Ø Consent Items 
Ø Public Hearings 
Ø Administrative Business 
Ø Matters Initiated by the Commission 
Ø Information Items/Announcements 
Ø Adjournment 
 

2.6. Public Notice   
Public notice of regular and special meetings will be provided in accordance with the 
provisions of the CKH Act, the Brown Act and the California Environmental Quality Act, as 
applicable.  The Executive Officer may provide public notice, above that required by law, when 
appropriate. 
 

2.7. Public Participation   
All citizens are encouraged to attend Commission meetings and state their views during public 
hearings.  Alameda LAFCo shall hear and consider all oral or written testimony presented by 
any affected agency or any interested person on any agenda item.  The Commission Chair 
may direct the focus of public comment for any given proposal.    
 

2.8. Public Comment   
An opportunity for public comment on any item not listed on an agenda will be provided at 
each meeting.  Public comments are limited to no more than three minutes. Additional time 
may be granted at the discretion of the Chair.   Only those issues, which are brought up at the 
public hearing or in written correspondence delivered to the Commissioners at or prior to the 
hearing, may be raised in any legal challenge to actions taken by the Commission.  
 

2.9. Written Comments  
Submission of written comments regarding an item on the agenda is encouraged to facilitate 
thorough and thoughtful consideration of issues.  Written comments will be distributed in 
agenda packets if received prior to packet distribution; for comments received up to 48 hours 
prior to the meeting, the Executive Officer will copy and distribute such comments at the 
meeting; for comments submitted less than 48 hours before the meeting, the writer must 
provide at least 15 copies for distribution, or may directly distribute written comments and 
materials to the Commission any time prior to the end of the public hearing.   
 

2.10. Consent Calendar   
Routine proposals and issues that do not require a public hearing may be placed on the 
Commission’s consent calendar.  Approval of all items on the consent calendar may be 
made in one motion.  Matters placed on the consent calendar may be removed by any 
Commissioner, staff person or member of the public in order to allow discussion or 
postponement.   
 
 

35



Alameda LAFCo   COMMISSION BY-LAWS, BUDGET & OPERATING POLICIES 
 

 7   

2.11. Quorum  
A quorum is the number of Commissioners that must be present to legally conduct 
business.  Four members of the seven-member commission constitute a quorum.   
 

2.12. Majority Vote  
Four affirmative votes, or a majority of the Commission, constitute a majority vote and are 
required for the adoption of any motion that has been duly made and seconded.  On a tie 
vote, the motion fails. 
 

2.13. Record of Proceedings  
The Commission Clerk shall record and prepare minutes of each meeting.  The minutes 
shall record major actions of the Commission at the meeting, but are not intended as a 
complete transcript of discussions.  Upon approval, the minutes with any corrections 
thereto, shall become the official record of the action of the Commission.  Commission 
proceedings shall be tape recorded and transcripts will prepared upon request.  The cost of 
transcription will be charged to the person or entity making the request in a manner 
established by the Executive Officer.   
 

2.14. Staff Reports   
Not less than five days prior to the hearing, the Executive Officer shall complete a staff report 
including his or her recommendations for each item to be heard.  Copies, along with the 
agenda, shall be provided to each member of the Commission and to parties as required by 
the CKH.  Staff reports related to change of organization, reorganization, and out of area 
service agreement proposals shall include the application questionnaire, a vicinity map; a 
boundary map showing existing and proposed boundaries along with relevant sphere of 
influence and other boundaries (e.g., Measure D and urban growth limits) superimposed, as 
appropriate; environmental documentation; and any related draft LAFCo resolutions.   
 

2.15. Committees   
LAFCo may establish committees deemed necessary for the purpose of conducting its 
proceedings.  The Commission chair shall appoint members to the committees.   
 

2.16. Policy and Budget Committee   
LAFCo shall have a standing policy and budget committee for the purpose of reviewing and 
recommending policies, an annual workplan and annual budget to the Commission.  The 
Policy and Budget Committee will meet the second Thursday of the even-numbered months 
(February, April, June, August, October and December) at 1:00 p.m. at the Dublin San 
Ramon Services District, 7051 Dublin Boulevard, Dublin, California. 
 

3. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 
 

3.1. Conflict of Interest Code   
Alameda LAFCo shall adopt a conflict of interest code and update as necessary.   
 

3.2. Disqualification   
A Commissioner must disqualify herself or himself and not participate in a proceeding 
involving any proposal if, within the last 12 months, that Commissioner has received $250 or 
more in business or campaign contributions from an applicant, an agent of an applicant, or any 
financially interested person who actively supports or opposes a decision on the matter 
pursuant to §84308.  
 
If a Commissioner’s impartiality with respect to a proposal is questioned by any person 
appearing before the Commission and that member has not disqualified himself or herself, the 

36



Alameda LAFCo   COMMISSION BY-LAWS, BUDGET & OPERATING POLICIES 
 

 8   

member may be permitted to abstain from participation in the proceedings by unanimous vote 
of the remaining Commission members.  In such an event, the alternate member would be 
qualified to vote in the place of the regular member.  A Commission member or alternate may 
not be disqualified from voting on any matter pertaining to his or her area or political 
jurisdiction.   
 

3.3. Financial Disclosure   
Pursuant to §56700.1, expenditures for political purposes related to an application must be 
disclosed.  All applicants, including individual property owners who are a party to a 
proceeding, are required to submit a financial disclosure statement as part of any application 
package.  Disclosures must be made in the same manner as disclosures for local initiative 
measures presented to the electorate. 

 
Any applicant or an agent of an applicant who has made business or campaign 
contributions totaling $250 or more to any Commissioner (regular or alternate) in the past 
twelve months, must disclose that fact for the official record of the Commission §84308(d).  
The disclosure of any such contribution (including amount of contribution and name of 
recipient Commissioner(s) must be made: (1) in writing and delivered to the Executive 
Officer of the Commission prior to the hearing on the matter; or (2) by oral declaration made 
at the time the hearing on the matter is opened. 

 
3.4. Other Disclosures   

The applicant and any participant in the application, as defined in  §84308, shall file with the 
Executive Officer any disclosure filings required by §56700.1. 

 
4. BUDGET  

 
4.1 Annual Budget 

LAFCo will adopt an annual budget that identifies the resources available for LAFCo’s use 
under the law and those resources necessary for the purpose of carrying out state law, 
including requirements for service reviews, sphere of influence updates and other 
mandated functions. 
 

4.2 Annual Workplan 
LAFCo will adopt an annual work plan that aligns with the Commission’s adopted strategic 
plan.  The work plan will guide the development of the budget. 

 
4.3 Proposed Budget 

The Commission’s Policy and Budget Committee shall meet in January and make 
recommendations regarding the proposed budget and workplan to the Commission at its 
regular March meeting each year.  The budget shall not be less than the prior year’s budget 
unless the Commission determines that such decreases will not impair its ability to comply 
with the CKH Act.   

 
4.4 Comment Period 

Following adoption of the proposed budget, copies shall be transmitted to the county, and 
cities and independent special districts within the county for comment.  The comment 
period will be at least 30 days.   

 
4.5 Final Budget 

Final action on the proposed budget will be taken at the commission’s regular May meeting.  
The adopted final budget will be transmitted to all agencies listed in 4.3.  

 

37



Alameda LAFCo   COMMISSION BY-LAWS, BUDGET & OPERATING POLICIES 
 

 9   

4.6 Member Agency Apportionment   
Pursuant to §56381, net budget cost shall be borne equally by the county, special districts 
and cities, and shall be collected by the County Auditor.  LAFCo may request loans from 
the county in the event that budgeted funds are inadequate due to changes in operating 
needs and requirements. If the county, a city or an independent special district does not 
remit its required payment within 60 days, the Commission authorizes and directs the 
Executive Officer to request that the County Auditor collect an equivalent amount from the 
property tax, or any fee or eligible revenue owed to that county, city or special district 
pursuant to Government Code §56381(c).   

 
4.7 Cooperative Intent 

LAFCo cooperates with local agencies as much as possible to accept budget cuts when 
necessary and when the requested cuts are compatible with the goals and work plan 
adopted by the Commission.   LAFCo shall decline to accept appropriation reduction 
requests, which are found to be unreasonable or incompatible with adopted policies and 
goals.  Appropriations cannot be reduced without the Commission’s prior approval. 

 
4.8 Budget Administrator 

The LAFCo Executive Officer shall serve as budget administrator to prepare, present, and 
transmit the budget to other agencies, and to review, execute and maintain the budget.  As 
requested, the Executive Officer may prepare two year planning budgets for the 
Commission’s consideration.  

 
4.9 Contingency 

The Commission’s annual operating budget shall include a contingency amount of $50,000 
to allow for the allocation of funds for fiscal emergencies, unanticipated legal fees, and 
elimination of operating shortfalls and related negative impacts on LAFCo operations.  The 
Executive Officer shall place a request to use contingency funds on the Commission’s next 
LAFCo agenda for which adequate notice may be given. If time does not allow that to 
occur, the Executive Officer may allocate contingency funds to cover emergency operating 
expenses after consulting with the Chair and Vice-Chair.  Within 24 hours of such 
allocations, the Executive Officer shall notify all Commissioners in writing and place a 
discussion of contingency fund allocation on the next LAFCo agenda for which adequate 
notice may be given  

 
4.10 Use of Fund Balance to Offset Expenditures 

Each year, in conjunction with the County Auditor’s Office, the Executive Officer shall 
identify the amount of fund balance available to be used to offset expenditures in the 
following fiscal year.   

 
4.11 Periodic Fiscal Reports 

The Executive Officer will provide periodic financial status reports of the budget to the 
Commission.  The Commission may make adjustments to its budget at any time during the 
fiscal year, as it deems appropriate. 

 
4.12 Audit 

Alameda LAFCO shall utilize an independent auditor to prepare annual or biennial financial 
statements.  The audit report, including the firm’s opinion, shall be presented to the 
Commission for formal receipt.  
 
Alameda LAFCO shall select a different independent auditor no less than every five years. 
The Commission may waive this requirement upon majority vote of the membership at a 
public meeting. Deleted:   

38



Alameda LAFCo   COMMISSION BY-LAWS, BUDGET & OPERATING POLICIES 
 

 10   

 
5. LAFCO FEES 
 
5.1. The Commission shall periodically review fees and adopt a fee schedule for the purpose of 

recovering the costs of all proceedings taken pursuant to the CKH Act.  Recoverable costs 
may include those necessary to revise the plans and policies that must be adopted before 
necessary findings or determinations may be adopted (See LAFCo Schedule of Fees and 
Charges.)  

 
5.2. The schedule of fees shall not exceed the estimated reasonable cost of providing the 

service for which the fee is charged.   
 
5.3. Proposals that include requests for minor administrative or corrective actions shall be “De 

Minimis” for application processing and fee collection purposes if staff determines that the 
project:  
 
Ø Is consistent with §56668, factors to be considered, and LAFCo policies and 

procedures;  
 

Ø Will not cause significant adverse impacts upon any agency or individual; does not 
involve any new extension of service;  

 
Ø Is proceeding with the consent of all affected landowners; and 

 
Ø Is defined as ministerial under, or qualifies for an Exemption from, the requirements of 

the California Environmental Quality Act.   
 
5.4. De Minimis projects may be approved without notice or public hearing.  
 
5.5. Applications submitted to LAFCo shall be accompanied by a non-refundable initial fee as 

detailed in the LAFCo Schedule of Fees and Charges.  The Executive Officer may stop 
work on any proposal until the applicant submits a requested deposit.  No application shall 
be deemed filed until required fees are deposited.  
 

5.6. Applicants are responsible for any fees or charges incurred by LAFCo or required by other 
agencies in the course of processing an application. 
 

5.7. Initial fees include a fixed number of staff hours (including Executive Officer, legal counsel, 
planning and support) as detailed in the fee schedule.  Additional LAFCo staff time (in 
excess of initial fee) shall be charged at actual cost. 
 

5.8. Applicants are responsible for any extraordinary administrative costs as determined by the 
Executive Officer and detailed for the applicant in a written statement. 
 

5.9. Additional LAFCo staff time and administrative costs shall not be charged for city 
annexation applications that are comprised solely of one, entire unincorporated island. 
 

5.10. If the Executive Officer estimates that a proposal will require more than the fixed number of 
staff hours covered by the initial fee to complete, she/he shall provide a written statement to 
that effect to the applicant and request a deposit in an amount sufficient to cover anticipated 
costs.  If this or any subsequent deposit proves insufficient, the Executive Officer shall 
provide an accounting of expenditures and request a deposit of additional funds. 
 

39



Alameda LAFCo   COMMISSION BY-LAWS, BUDGET & OPERATING POLICIES 
 

 11   

5.11. If the processing of an application requires that LAFCo contract with another agency or with 
a private firm or individual for services that are beyond the normal scope of LAFCo staff 
work (e.g., drafting an Environmental Impact Report or Comprehensive Fiscal Analysis), the 
applicant shall be responsible for all costs associated with that contract.  The applicant will 
provide LAFCo with deposits sufficient to cover the cost of the contract. 
 

5.12. Written appeal of fees and/or deposits, specifying the reason for the appeal, may be 
submitted to LAFCo prior to the submission of an application or prior to the submission of a 
deposit requested by the Executive Officer.  The appeal will be considered at the next 
regular meeting of the Commission.  
 

5.13. The Commission may waive a fee if it finds that payment is detrimental to the public interest 
pursuant to §56383(d).  
 

5.14. Upon completion of a project, the Executive Officer shall issue to the applicant a statement 
detailing all expenditures in excess of the deposit, or credits if warranted.   Excess funds 
shall be refunded to the applicant as appropriate. 
 

5.15. If an application is withdrawn, LAFCo will refund 50% of the submitted fee, or a sum equal 
to the original fee minus processing costs to date, whichever ensures that LAFCo recovers 
its actual costs.  Petition checking fees will not be refunded. 
 

5.16. No refunds will be provided after a public hearing has been scheduled and LAFCo’s 
scheduling procedure has been concluded. 
 

5.17. As a condition of approval for any action, the Commission may impose a condition which 
requires, in the event of legal challenges, that the applicant assume the full legal defense 
costs because they are a liability incurred by LAFCo after, and as a result of, project 
approval (§56886(f), §56383, §57302).  
 

5.18. The Commission may include, within its resolution of approval, a condition that requires the 
applicant to defend, indemnify, and hold the Commission harmless, in the event that legal 
action is taken against LAFCo as a direct result of a project’s approval. 

 
6. OPERATIONS 
 
6.1 Executive Officer 

The LAFCo Executive Officer conducts and performs the day-to-day business of the 
Commission and is responsible for providing managerial, analytical and administrative 
support to the Commission so it can fulfill its duties. The Executive Officer implements the 
policies and directives established by the Commission; acts as liaison between the 
Commission, the general public, CALAFCO and other public and private entities; and 
supervises any LAFCo employees and consultants retained by the Commission. 
 

6.2 Executive Officer Performance Review 
The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act declares the 
Commission should function independent of any local agency, and the policy of the 
Commission is that, pursuant to Government Code Section 56384, it shall appoint an 
Executive Officer. The Executive Officer shall be subject to regular performance review by 
the Commission. With respect to this performance review, the policy of the Commission is: 

 
 
 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

40



Alameda LAFCo   COMMISSION BY-LAWS, BUDGET & OPERATING POLICIES 
 

 12   

 
1. The performance review shall occur annually.  

 
2. The process for these performance reviews shall be: 

 
a) At least three weeks prior to the meeting at which the review is to take place, 

the Executive Officer shall send to each Commissioner a letter of self-
evaluation and a performance review form. 

 
b) At least one week prior to the review, each Commissioner shall send a 

completed form to the Commission Chair. 
 

c) The Chair shall tabulate and summarize the forms and present this 
information to the County Administrator / Community Development Director. 
The County Administrator / Community Development Director will complete 
his or her own performance review form. This information will subsequently 
be presented to the Executive Officer during the performance review 
conducted by the County Administrator / Community Development Director or 
his or her designee.  

 
3. Any Commissioner or the Executive Officer may request the use of an outside 

facilitator. The Chair shall appoint the facilitator in consultation with the Executive 
Officer. Should the cost of the facilitator’s services exceed the Executive Officer 
delegated purchasing authority, the cost will be subject to a vote of the Commission 
at either a regular or special meeting and the facilitator may or may not commence 
services until budget authority has been obtained.  

 
 

 
6.3 Small Contract Authority 

The Executive Officer is authorized to negotiate contracts up to $5,000 on behalf of the 
Commission within the authority conferred by the adopted budget.  The Executive Officer 
shall obtain concurrence of the Chair and consult with the LAFCo legal counsel prior to 
entering into any contract outside the usual course of Commission business, including 
contracts for legal, consulting or other professional services.  Staff shall promptly notify the 
members of the Commission regarding contracts made on the Commission’s behalf.  
 

 
 
6.4 Records Retention 

As used in this policy, the term “record” (or “record of proceedings”) is defined to mean 
documents that show decisions or actions taken by the Commission in fulfillment of its 
statutory responsibilities.   
 
Except as otherwise provided herein, and subject to the conditions contained in this 
policy, all original records and documents maintained by LAFCo will be retained for a 
period of five (5) years.  A true copy of all documents shall be kept in a safe and separate 
place for security purposes.   
 
Records maintained by the Commission include, but are not limited to the following:  

• Records of proceedings (examples include the LAFCo application, petition or other 
initiating documents; statement of property valuation; statement of tax rate area 
assignment; indemnification and agreements to pay; Certificates of Filing and 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75", Hanging:  0.19"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75", Hanging:  0.19"

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.06", Hanging:  0.38", Tab stops:
 1.06", Left

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.25", Hanging:  0.19"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.06", Hanging:  0.38"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.25", Hanging:  0.19"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.06", Hanging:  0.38"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.25",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

41



Alameda LAFCo   COMMISSION BY-LAWS, BUDGET & OPERATING POLICIES 
 

 13   

Completion; copies of public hearing notice; environmental review documents 
prepared for purposes of complying with the California Environmental Quality Act 
("CEQA"); plan for service; map and legal description; staff reports; impartial 
analysis; order for change of organization/reorganization; documentation of 
election and results; Statement of Boundary Change; State Board of Equalization 
acknowledgement letter; LAFCo meeting minutes; Municipal Service Reviews) 

• Administrative/Financial documents (budgets, accounts payable, accounts 
receivable, audits, invoices, ledgers, registers, Commissioner reimbursements, 
Commissioner policies and procedures, agreements, contracts, leases, purchase 
orders, requisitions, recruitment/selection/resumes, claims)   

•  Original statements of economic interest (Form 700) which will be retained for a 
period of seven (7) years.   

 
At the conclusion of the applicable required retention period, the Executive Officer is 
authorized to destroy records as needed, provided that a photographic or electronic copy 
of the original record is first made and preserved in the manner specified in Government 
Code section 56382.  The reproductions must be made as accessible for public reference 
as the original records were. 

 
6.5 Purchasing 

Alameda LAFCo generally follows the purchasing policies of Alameda County as 
applicable to operations of the Commission.  If there are any conflicts between Alameda 
County’s and LAFCo’s policies and procedures, the policies and procedures of the LAFCo 
shall prevail.  The Commission Clerk shall initiate transactions such as purchase orders and 
payment of invoices and claims.  The  Executive  Officer  shall  review  all  claims  and  
invoices  received  by LAFCo and may authorize payment, as appropriate, within the 
framework and limitations of the budget as adopted by the Commission.  The Commission 
Clerk and Executive Officer shall maintain and reconcile records of all financial 
transactions.  The primary objectives for accounts payable and cash disbursements are to 
ensure disbursements are properly authorized, invoices are processed in a timely manner, 
and invoice charges do not exceed the purchase order or contract amount.  Credit card 
purchases shall be made in accordance with the Alameda County Procurement Card 
program policies and procedures. 
 
 
 
 

Deleted: ¶

42



LAFCo		Understanding Local Agency Formation Commissions and its Authority

January 2019

 Post World War II population and housing 
boom in California

 Street car suburbs; scramble to finance and 
extend services

 City annexation "wars;" proliferation of 
limited purpose special districts

 Confusion with multiple local governments

What	Needs	Were	Addressed?

 No state commission or statewide agency 

 Local control; no state appointments

 A LAFCo in every county

 Each LAFCo independent

Legislative	Solution
(1960 to 1963)

Cortese‐Knox‐Hertzberg	Local	
Government	Reorganization	Act	of	2000

1. Spheres of Influence

2. Municipal Service Reviews

3. LAFCo Independence

4. Affordable housing, 
disadvantaged 
communities, RTP, JPAs

43



LAFCo		Understanding Local Agency Formation Commissions and its Authority

January 2019

1. Promote orderly growth

2. Prevent sprawl

3. Preserve agriculture and open space

4. Assure efficient, sustainable public 
services

A	Purpose

 Create new cities and special districts

 Change boundaries

 Change authorized services

 Reorganize local agencies

 Authorize service extensions

 Perform municipal service reviews

 Manage spheres of influence

Responsibilities

 2 county supervisors, 2 city council 
members, 1 public member

 30 LAFCos also have 2 special district 
members

 Alternate member in each category 

 All members required by law to represent 
the interests of the entire public

LAFCo	Composition
Commissions	a	Unique	Mix

44



LAFCo		Understanding Local Agency Formation Commissions and its Authority

January 2019

 Develop and update Spheres of Influence for 
cities and districts  

 Prepare Municipal Service Reviews of all local 
agencies

 Work cooperatively with public and private 
interests on growth, preservation and service 
delivery

A	Planning	Agency

 Manage modification of existing agencies and 
creation of new ones 

 Approve boundary changes if consistent with 
spheres

 Control extension of public services

 Prohibited from directly regulating how land 
is used, but …

A	Regulatory	Agency

Spheres	of	Influence	 §56425

“… commission shall develop and 
determine the sphere of influence 
of each local governmental agency 
within the county and enact 
policies designed to promote the 
logical and orderly development of 
areas within the sphere.”

45



LAFCo		Understanding Local Agency Formation Commissions and its Authority

January 2019

In determining the SOI the commission considers:

1. Present and planned land uses, including 
agriculture and open‐space

2. Present and probable need for public facilities 
and services

3. Present capacity of public facilities and adequacy 
of public services 

4. Existence of any social or economic communities 
of interest

Spheres	of	Influence	 §56425

Spheres	of	Influence	 §56425

“The commission may recommend 
governmental reorganizations to 
particular agencies in the county, 
using the spheres of influence as 
the basis for those 
recommendations.”

Municipal	Service	Reviews §56430 

“In order to prepare and to 
update spheres of influence  … 
commission shall conduct a 
service review of the municipal 
services provided in the county 
or other appropriate area 
designated by the commission.”

46



LAFCo		Understanding Local Agency Formation Commissions and its Authority

January 2019

Service	Reviews	Can	Be	Illuminating	

Growth projections

Present and planned capacity

Financial ability of agency

Shared facilities 

Accountability

Other matters

Service	Reviews	Add	Value

MSRs inform LAFCo and Agency decisions

Orderly growth: agencies and territory

Future boundary changes
Service delivery options
Regional Transportation Plans

 Local policies drive type, content and methodology

 Requires sphere reviews every five years

 Leaves “as necessary” to local policy

LAFCo	Authority

 Informal Authority

 Influence: studies, MSR recommendations, 
resources, education, brokering conversations

Shadow of the future

 Formal Authority

Approval/denial of applications
Terms and Conditions

Filing with Board of Equalization

47



LAFCo		Understanding Local Agency Formation Commissions and its Authority

January 2019

Terms	and	Conditions
Ability to Enforce

 LAFCo: Filing, future applications
Other Governments: County permits, Transportation 
agency, other agencies

Private enforcement

No Land Use Authority

“None of the following terms and conditions shall 
directly regulate land use, property development or 
subdivision requirements”

 Commissioners make final decisions

Adopt local policies

Decisions cannot be appealed to other 
bodies

 Executive Officer accountable to 
Commission and statutes

Authority as an independent 
public agency

LAFCo	Is	Independent

 “Engaged in the pursuit of an overriding State 
purpose”

 Is quasi‐legislative; limited legal challenge to 
decisions
Determinations vs. findings

 Legislature’s “watch dog” on local governments

Courts	Support	Authority

48



The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Government Reorganization Act of 2000 
Legislative Findings and Declarations 
 
56001.  The Legislature finds and declares that it 
is the policy of the state to encourage orderly 
growth and development which are essential to 
the social, fiscal, and economic well-being of the 
state.   
The Legislature recognizes that the logical 
formation and determination of local agency 
boundaries is an important factor in promoting 
orderly development and in balancing that 
development with sometimes competing state 
interests of discouraging urban sprawl, 
preserving open-space and prime agricultural 
lands, and efficiently extending government 
services.   
The Legislature also recognizes that providing 
housing for persons and families of all incomes is 
an important factor in promoting orderly 
development.   
Therefore, the Legislature further finds and 
declares that this policy should be effected by the 
logical formation and modification of the 
boundaries of local agencies, with a preference 
granted to accommodating additional growth 
within, or through the expansion of, the 
boundaries of those local agencies which can best 
accommodate and provide necessary 
governmental services and housing for persons 
and families of all incomes in the most efficient 
manner feasible. 
The Legislature recognizes that urban population 
densities and intensive residential, commercial, 
and industrial development necessitate a broad 
spectrum and high level of community services 
and controls.  The Legislature also recognizes  
that when areas become urbanized to the extent 
that they need the full range of community 
services, priorities are required to be established 
regarding the type and levels of services that the 
residents of an urban community need and desire; 
that community service priorities be established 
by weighing the total community service needs 
against the total financial resources available for 
securing community services; and that those 
community service priorities are required to 
reflect local circumstances, conditions, and 
limited financial resources.   
The Legislature finds and declares that a single 
multipurpose governmental agency is 
accountable for community service needs and 

financial resources and, therefore, may be the 
best mechanism for establishing community 
service priorities especially in urban areas. 
Nonetheless, the Legislature recognizes the 
critical role of many limited purpose agencies, 
especially in rural communities.  The Legislature 
also finds that, whether governmental services 
are proposed to be provided by a single-purpose 
agency, several agencies, or a multipurpose 
agency, responsibility should be given to the 
agency or agencies that can best provide 
government services. 

56301.  Among the purposes of a commission 
are discouraging urban sprawl, preserving open-
space and prime agricultural lands, encouraging 
the efficient provision of government services, 
and encouraging the orderly formation and 
development of local agencies based upon local 
conditions and circumstances. One of the objects 
of the commission is to make studies and to 
obtain and furnish information which will 
contribute to the logical and reasonable 
development of local agencies in each county and 
to shape the development of local agencies so as 
to advantageously provide for the present and 
future needs of each county and its communities.  
When the formation of a new government entity 
is proposed, a commission shall make a 
determination as to whether existing agencies can 
feasibly provide the needed service or services in 
a more efficient and accountable manner. If a new 
single-purpose agency is deemed necessary, the 
commission shall consider reorganization with 
other single-purpose agencies that provide related 
services. 

56325.1.  While serving on the commission, all 
commission members shall exercise their 
independent judgment on behalf of the interests 
of residents, property owners, and the public as a 
whole in furthering the purposes of this division.  
Any member appointed on behalf of local 
governments shall represent the interests of the 
public as a whole and not solely the interests of 
the appointing authority.  This section does not 
require the abstention of any member on any 
matter, nor does it create a right of action in any 
person. 

 

49



Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission 
Strategic Planning Workshop  

December 16, 2019 

1

CALL 
WORKSHOP 
TO ORDER

�Roll Call
�Pledge of Allegiance
�Public Comment

2

50



BUSINESS ITEMS

a. Contract Extension with QK 
Associates

b. MOU with LAFCO and CDA

c. Executive Officer 
Performance Review

3

LAFCO 101 
Presentation 
Bill Chiat 

4

51



Mission 
Statement 
Alameda LAFCO provides oversight over local governments to make Alameda
County a great place to live and work by balancing the preservation of
agriculture and open space with the provision of sustainable municipal services.

5

The Year in Review –

Discussion of 
Organizational Goals 
and Accomplishments 

Strategic Plan of 2018-2022
1. Island Annexations
2. Water
3. Population Growth
4. Agriculture and Open Space Preservation
5. Climate Change Adaptation
6. LAFCO Operational Improvements
7. Unincorporated Communities 

Work Plan – Statutory and Administrative Duties   

Study Schedule – MSRs

6

52



1. Island Annexations - There are two types of islands:  unincorporated islands and unserved islands.  Unincorporated islands are pockets of County territory that 

are surrounded by or adjacent to cities.  The residents in these islands typically receive their services from the County.  If these island areas meet certain criteria 

identified in Government Code Section 56375.3, they may qualify for expedited annexation processing procedures.  There may be other unincorporated areas 

within the County that do not meet that criteria but warrant additional study.  The boundaries of special districts may include pockets of unserved territory that 

can be referred to as unserved islands.  These types of islands do not qualify for an expedited annexation process.  The development and adoption of local 

policies to incentivize all types of island annexations may lead to more efficient service provision.     

Objectives Key Action Steps Timeframe 

A. Eliminate islands by 

encouraging municipal 

annexation of unincorporated 

islands and district annexation of 

unserved islands.    

 

1. Review existing island annexation policies and identify potential changes. 
 

2. Present draft policy recommendations to the Policy and Budget Committee. 
 

3. Present draft Policy and Budget Committee recommendations to the full Commission for 

consideration. 
 

4. Identify and update list of island areas and map the islands based on revised island annexation policies. 
 

5. Communicate directly with affected agencies to inform them of revised policies and encourage each 

agency to identify steps needed to annex the islands within their jurisdictional boundaries and provide 

that information to LAFCo.  

2019 

B. Serve as a resource to the public 

and to local agencies to support 

orderly growth and logical, 

sustainable service provision.   

1. Disseminate revised island annexation policies to all member agencies and key stakeholders, and post 

updated policies on Alameda LAFCo website. 
 

2. Work with affected local agencies and communities to address identified barriers and facilitate 

community meetings to annexation. 

2019 

  

53



7. Comprehensive Study of Unincorporated Areas Focusing on Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities - Alameda County has 14 municipalities and

six developed unincorporated communities.  Beginning in 2012, state law was enacted requiring LAFCos, cities, and counties to plan for municipal service

delivery to disadvantaged unincorporated communities (DUCs).  A DUC is defined as an area of inhabited territory located within an unincorporated area of a

County in which the annual median household income is less than 80 percent of the statewide median household income.  The law requires LAFCo to identify

and make specified determinations about DUCs. LAFCo does not establish spheres of influence for unincorporated communities, but Alameda LAFCo has

determined the need for a more in-depth look at the municipal services provided in the six developed unincorporated communities with a focus on DUCs.

Key Objective Key Action Steps Timeframe 

A. Conduct a service review of

the unincorporated areas of

Alameda County focusing on

disadvantaged unincorporated

communities.

1. Engage stakeholders to identify the most pressing local conditions and circumstances that influence the

provision of municipal services in the unincorporated areas of Alameda County.

2. Consider the need to develop policies and standards regarding DUCs.

3. Develop and implement special study of the unincorporated areas including any identified DUCs.

4. As appropriate, identify terms and conditions to apply as part of the SOI update process to improve

the provision of municipal services within DUCs.

5. Follow up as needed with local agencies where terms and conditions have been imposed to monitor

agency progress.

6. Disseminate results of study to key stakeholders and post updates on Alameda LAFCo website.

2019 

54



 

2. Water Supply and Availability Including Recycled Water - Water supply and availability is a perennially critical issue throughout California.  LAFCo 

considers the availability of water supplies as one of the 16 factors analyzed as part of reorganization proposals (e.g., annexations).  Additionally, LAFCo 

conducts municipal services reviews which include the study of water supply and availability across the County including recycled water.  Alameda LAFCo 

seeks to promote sustainable, adequate and reliable water sources to support existing and future development, as well as agricultural land uses. 

Objective Key Action Steps Timeframe 

A. Promote the sustainability of 

adequate and reliable water 

supplies, including the use of 

recycled water, to support 

existing and future 

development and agricultural 

land uses.   

1. Develop policies and standards to address the sustainability of adequate and reliable water supplies, 

including the use of recycled water.    
 

2. Incorporate standards into municipal services reviews (MSRs) and sphere of influence (SOI) 

updates. 
 

3. Complete MSR of water, waste water, flood control, and storm water services in Alameda County and 

update SOIs as necessary. 
 

4. As appropriate, identify terms and conditions to apply as part of the SOI update process to promote 

adequate and reliable water supplies including the use of recycled water.  
 

5. Follow up as needed with local agencies where terms and conditions have been imposed to monitor 

agency progress.  
 

6. Convene local agencies, regulatory agencies (e.g., the State Regional Water Quality Control Board), the 

Dublin San Ramon Services District – East Bay Municipal Utility District Recycled Water Authority 

(DERWA), and other relevant stakeholders to facilitate conversations about regional water and 

wastewater coordination opportunities.       

2018 

  

55



3. Accommodate Population Growth While Maintaining Quality of Life - The State Legislature granted LAFCos the authority to regulate boundaries and establish spheres 

of influence (SOIs) for cities and special districts that provide municipal services.  SOIs are LAFCo-adopted planning areas that show where a local agency’s physical 

boundary and service area should be.  In conjunction with the update of SOIs, LAFCo conducts municipal services reviews (MSRs).  A MSR evaluates the capability of an 

agency to serve its existing residents and future development within its SOI and must include specific written determinations including, but not limited to, the level and 

adequacy of services, financial ability of agencies to provide services, and accountability of local governmental agencies.  Through these mechanisms, LAFCo assumes both 

planning and regulatory roles in accommodating population growth and maintaining the quality of life for Alameda County residents. 

Objectives Key Action Steps Timeframe 

A. Encourage orderly growth and 

development through the logical and 

efficient provision of municipal 

services by local agencies best suited 

to feasibly provide necessary 

governmental services and housing 

for persons and families of all 

incomes.    

1. Implement LAFCo’s regulatory functions by processing governmental service reorganization 

proposals and out-of-area service agreement applications. 
 

2. Implement LAFCo’s planning functions by periodically updating the SOIs of local governmental 

agencies and conducting MSRs.   
 

3. Update LAFCo’s policies and procedures to improve usability and reflect local conditions and 

circumstances.  
 

4. Serve as a resource to the public and to local agencies to support orderly growth and logical, 

sustainable service provision.   
 

5. Participate in regional planning efforts including the update of Plan Bay Area. 

2018, 2019, 2020 

B. Be proactive and act as a catalyst for 

change as a way to contribute to 

making Alameda County a great 

place to live and work.   

1. Maintain relationships with member agencies and other identified stakeholders to stay abreast of 

major service issues and proposed changes of organization (e.g., California Special Districts 

Association, Mayors’ Conference, local agency planning staff, other boards and councils). 
 

2. Communicate Alameda LAFCo’s mission and goals to the community.   
 

3. Identify strategies to achieve shared objectives. 
 

4. Participate in the California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO) 

statewide efforts to enhance and clarify LAFCo authority and powers to perform its state-mandated 

responsibilities.   

2018, 2019, 2020 

C. Strengthen local agency oversight.   1. Identify and adopt accountability and transparency standards for local agencies including Alameda 

LAFCo (e.g. Special District Leadership Foundation). 
 

2. Identify and adopt financial stress test standards for local agencies (e.g., League of Cities 

Municipal Financial Health Diagnostic Tool).   
 

3. Incorporate standards into MSR and SOI update processes. 
 

4. As appropriate, identify terms and conditions to apply as part of the SOI update process to strengthen 

local agency accountability and transparency, and financial ability to provide services.     
 

5. Follow up as needed with local agencies where terms and conditions have been imposed to monitor 

agency progress.  

2018 

56



 

4. Agriculture and Open Space Preservation and Urban Growth Boundaries - The State Legislature specifies LAFCos’ purposes to be, among others, 

“discouraging urban sprawl, [and] preserving open space and prime agricultural lands…based upon local conditions and circumstances.”  Voter-approved 

urban growth boundaries have been adopted by Alameda County, as well as the cities of Dublin, Livermore, and Pleasanton.  LAFCo has decided to strengthen 

its policies in relation to preserving agriculture and open space.  Additionally, LAFCo will determine the need to adopt policies regarding the application of 

voter-approved urban growth boundaries to matters before it. 

Key Objectives Key Action Steps Timeframe 

A. Support the viability of 

agriculture in Alameda 

County 

1. Review existing agricultural, in-fill, out-of-area service agreement, and sphere of influence policies. 
 

2. Work with stakeholders to identify issues under LAFCo jurisdiction related to the economic viability of 

agriculture.   
 

3. Establish set of standards and revised policies based on best practices and local conditions.  
 

4. Disseminate information to key stakeholders and post updates on Alameda LAFCo website. 
 

5. Utilize policies to impose conditions on reorganization proposals, sphere of influence updates, and out-of-

area service agreement applications to support the viability of agricultural land uses.  

2019 

B. Mitigate for loss of 

agricultural and open space 

lands. 

1. Establish a set of standards and policies based on best practices and local conditions.  
 

2. Present recommendations to Policy and Budget Committee. 
 

3. Present Policy and Budget Committee recommendations to full Commission. 
 

4. Disseminate information to key stakeholders and post updates on Alameda LAFCo website. 
 

5. Utilize policies to impose conditions on reorganization proposals, sphere of influence updates, and out-of-

area service agreement applications to support the viability of agricultural land uses.  

2020 

C. Determine the need for local 

policies regarding the 

application of adopted urban 

growth boundaries to LAFCo 

decision making. 

1. Collect and review information and maps regarding all adopted urban growth boundaries in Alameda 

County, as well as best practices from other LAFCos. 
 

2. Present information to Policy and Budget Committee to discuss whether a local policy regarding urban 

growth boundaries is warranted.   
 

3. Based on Policy and Budget Committee recommendation, determine need to develop draft policies and 

present to full Commission for consideration. 

2020 

  

57



5. Climate Change Adaptation - Current and future climate change impacts are of concern in Alameda County.  Such impacts may include rising sea levels, 

flooding, wildfire, extreme heat episodes and drought.  An increase in the frequency and severity of extreme events related to these impacts is expected.  

LAFCo will determine the need for policies regarding climate change adaptation and local agencies’ plans to prepare for these challenges.  

Key Objectives Key Action Steps Timeframe 

A. Promote the recognition of 

climate change adaptation 

needs. 

1. Work with stakeholders to identify the impacts of climate change that local agencies and communities 

face now and into the future (e.g. infrastructure subject to the effects of climate change, increased fire 

risks at the wildland-urban interface). 

 

2. Facilitate climate adaptation information sharing among local agencies and discussions around long-term 

needs for adaptation in land use plans, capital infrastructure plans, master plans and other relevant 

documents. 

 

3. Document County-wide climate change adaptation needs and plans to maximize resources and benefits. 

2020 

B. Determine the need for local 

policies regarding climate 

change adaptation. 

1. Review documentation regarding local circumstances and conditions affecting climate change adaptation. 

 

2. Present information to Policy and Budget Committee and discuss whether local policies regarding climate 

change adaptation are warranted.   

 

3. Based on Policy and Budget Committee recommendation, develop draft policies and present to full 

Commission for consideration.  

2020 

  

58



6. LAFCo Independence and Other Operational Improvements - The State Legislature recognized LAFCo’s independence as vital to ensuring that LAFCo 

decisions are credible to the public when it enacted changes as part of the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (CKH).  

Among other provisions, CKH authorizes LAFCos to adopt written policies and procedures, incur expenses to accomplish its functions, and to employ staff or 

contract for professional services to carry out the functions of the Commission.  CKH further specifies that LAFCo shall appoint its executive officer and legal 

counsel.  Alameda LAFCo currently obtains its staffing and other services via memorandum of understanding with Alameda County.  It has been over 15 years 

since the CKH was enacted.  A study of the costs and benefits of various operational models is warranted.  

Key Objectives Key Action Steps Timeframe 

A. Improve efficiency and 

effectiveness of Commission 

operations. 

1. Complete a study of various operational options ranging from status quo to full independence that 

includes general implementation timelines, range of costs, and other implementation factors. 

 

2. Present study results to Policy and Budget Committee. 

 

3. Present Policy and Budget Committee recommendations to full Commission. 

 

4. Implement recommendations adopted by Commission.  

2018 

B. Update the Alameda LAFCo 

website to be more functional 

for members of the public and 

local agencies. 

1. Conduct request-for-proposal process to obtain website design services. 

 

2. Present proposed changes to Commission for review and comment. 

 

3. Implement update.  

 

4. Maintain website with updated information as needed.  

2018 

  

59



Alameda Local Agency Formation Commission
Political Subdivision of the State of California 

2019-2024 

Study Schedule 

Adopted March 14, 2019 

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (“CKH”) requires Local Agency 
Formation Commissions (LAFCOs) to review and update spheres of influence for all cities and special 
districts by January 1, 2008 and every five years thereafter. CKH specifies LAFCOs inform their sphere of 
influence updates by preparing comprehensive evaluations – municipal service reviews – to determine the  
availability and adequacy of local governmental services relative to current and future community needs. The  
collective purpose of these studies is to make LAFCOs more proactive in independently overseeing logical  
formation and development of local government agencies and their services with increasingly emphasis on  
promoting accountability and efficiency.  

Objective: 
This study schedule is intended to serve as a guide to Alameda LAFCO in fulfilling its statutory directives to 
prepare municipal service reviews and sphere of influence updates during the legislative cycle covering the  
2019-2024 period. The study schedule has been prepared in consultation with affected agencies and input from 
the general public and reflects the Commission’s interests and priorities over the referenced period. The  
Commission will regularly review and amend, as needed, the study schedule to help track progress as well as  
adjust to changes in priorities and resources.  

Study Schedule: 

 FY2018 -2019 
Comprehensive Water and Wastewater Study 
Service Specific 

‐ East Bay Municipal Utility District 
- AC Water District
‐ AC Flood Control & Water Conservation District
‐ Castro Valley Sanitary District
- Dublin San Ramon Services District
‐ Livermore Amador Valley Sewer CSA
‐ Oro Loma Sanitary District
‐ Union Sanitary District
- Zone 7 Water Agency
- Five Canyons CSA

- City of Alameda
- City of Berkeley
- City of Dublin
- City of

Emeryville
- City of Fremont
- City of Hayward
- City of Livermore
- City of Newark

- City of Oakland
- City of Piedmont
- City of Pleasanton
- City of San Leandro
- City of Union City

 FY2019-2020 
Comprehensive Fire Protection and Emergency Medical Services Study 
Service Specific 

‐ Alameda County Fire Department - All Cities
‐ Emergency Medical Services CSA 
- Fairview Fire Protection District
- East Bay Regional Parks District

60



Alameda LAFCO 
Adopted Five‐Year Study Schedule | FY 2018‐2023 

 FY2020-2021 

Community Services Study II 
Service Specific (Street Maintenance and Lighting Services, Parks and Recreation Services, Library Services, Broadband,
Mosquito & Vector Abatement Services, and Lead Abatement Services)

‐ Alameda County Mosquito Abatement District - All Cities
‐ East Bay Regional Parks District 
‐ Hayward Area Recreation and Park District 
‐ Livermore Area Recreation and Park District 
‐ Alameda County Library District 
‐ Castro Valley Library CSA 
‐ Dublin Library CSA 
‐ Castle Homes CSA 
‐ Castlewood CSA 
‐ Estuary Bridges CSA 
‐ Five Canyons CSA 
‐ MORVA CSA 
‐ Street Lighting CSA 
‐ Vector Control Services CSA 
‐ Lead Abatement CSA 

Resource Conservation Study 
Service Specific 
- Alameda County Resource Conservation District

 FY2021-2022 

Countywide Police Services Study 
Services Specific 

‐ Alameda County Extended Police Protection CSA 
‐ All Cities 

 FY2022‐2023 

Comprehensive Tri-Valley Area Study 
Region Specific 

‐ Public Safety Districts - City of Dublin
- Utility Districts - City of Pleasanton
- Community Services District - City of Livermore
‐ Multipurpose Agencies

 FY2023‐2024 

Health Care Services Study 
Services Specific 

‐ City of Alameda Health Care District 
- Eden Township Health Care District
- Washington Township Healthcare District
‐ Multipurpose Agencies

61



P

U

P

P

P

U

P

P

P

U

U

P

P

U

P

P

Status Notations:          C: Completed               U: Underway        P: Pending

User Friendly Publication Identifying and Summarizing Local Government Agencies and Services in Alameda County

Continue Project to Digitize LAFCO Records

Enhanece and Clarify LAFCO Authority and Powers to Perform its State-Mandated Responsibilities

Communicate LAFCO's Mission and Goals to the Community

Evaluate LAFCO's Mission and Goals Relative to Local Conditions; Identify Strategies to Achieve Shared Objectives

CDA to Create a LAFCO GIS Layer for All Local Agencies under LAFCO Purview

Establish New Agency Logo for Branding (Website, Publications, etc.)

Map all Unincorporated Islands and Examine Island Annexation Implementation Issues in Alameda County

Last MSR conducted in 2013; Open space land preservation

Status Report on District Activites

Periodical review of existing policies relatiev to practices and trends, and determine whether changes are 

appropriate to better reflect current preferences

Improve Efficiency and Effectiveness of Application Process

Special Report on Service Delivery Feasability

Host Alameda County Special District Association Meeting

LAFCO Annual Report on Status of County

GIS Mapping Project

LAFCO Agency Logo

Local Agency Directory 

Informational Report on Fairview Fire Protection District

Policy Review on Agricultural Protection and Out of Area Service Agreements

Master Property Tax Exchange Agreement

Informational Report on Remen Tract

Digital Archiving

CALAFCO Legislative Committee

New

New

New

New

Prepare Informational Report on JPAs

LAFCO Presentations

Update Applicatinon Packet

Prepare Informational Report on Unincorporated Islands

Alameda County Resource Conservation MSR

New

New

Rollover

Rollover

Rollover

New

Administrative

Administrative

Administrative

New

New

New

Rollover

New

Rollover

Statutory

Administrative

Administrative

Administrative

Administrative

Administrative

Low

Low

Administrative

Administrative

Administrative

Administrative

Statutory

Administrative

Administrative

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

Low

26

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Moderate

Low

Low

20

21

22

23

24

25

14

15

16

17

18

19

U

ALAMEDA LAFCO WORKPLAN | 2019-2020

11

12

13

Post Enactment of SB 1266; Enhance Repository on Local Government Services

Introductory Overview of LAFCO's Duties and Responsibilities to Boards, Councils, Community Groups

Current Application Dated; Make User Friendly

Status

P

C

U

P

C

C

C

C

U

10 Moderate Statutory Rollover Informational Report on Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities Develop and Implement Special Study of Unincorporated Areas focusing on DUCs; Consider Policies

9 Moderate Statutory Rollover Sphere Update for City of Pleasanton Implement Planning Functions; Update SOIs of Local Government Agencies; Cities MSR

8 Moderate Statutory New General MSR on Fire Protection and Emergency Services Second MSR on Fire and Emergency Services sine 2006 | Address Shared Opportunities

7 Moderate Statutory New Study Schedule Update Improve Efficiency and Effectivenss of Commission Operations and Transparency

6 Moderate Statutory New Special District Member Elections Conduct Special District Member Elections to Ensure LAFCO Representation

5 Moderate Statutory New Dissolutions of Inactive Special Districts Implement Regulatory Functions; SB 448

4 Moderate Administrative New 2017-2018 Audit Verify Fund Balance; First Audit in Ten Years

3 High Administrative New Staff Recruitment, Placement and Training Recruitment and Training of LAFCO Commission Clerk and Analyst

2 High Statutory Rollover General MSR on Water, Wastewater, and Stormwater Services First Service Specific MSR since 2006 | Address Infrastructure Needs and Efficiencies and Sustainability

1 High Administrative Rollover MOU Update with County of Alameda Update existing MOU with the County of Alameda to reflect current agency relationships/needs

Priority Urgency Type Status Project Key Issues

62



z

Expense Ledger FY2016-2017 FY2017-2018 FY2018-2019

Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals           Difference  Percent of Budget
As of 10-28-19

Salary and Benefit Costs 

Account Description 
60001 Staff Salaries - - - - 321,692 269,829 308,307 77,077 231,230               25.0%
- Employee Benefits and Retirement (ACERA) - - - - 149,961 139,003 175,275 43,819 131,456               25.0%

422,665 378,825 472,385 383,228 471,653 408,832               483,581 120,896 362,686              25.0%

Service and Supplies

Account Description 

- Intern 1,600 - 1,600 - 1,600 - 1,600 0 1,600 0.0%

610077 Postage 1,000 2,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 707 1,000 57 943 5.7%

610141 Copier 1,800 4,000 2,000 2,503 3,000 859 3,000 143 2,857 4.8%

610191 Pier Diems 6,600 7,000 7,500 7,300 7,700 5,700 7,800 1,800 6,000 23.1%

610211 Mileage/Travel - - - 89 200 1,308 1,300 115 1,185 8.9%

610461 Training (Conferences and Workshops) 18,500 12,000 20,000 17,171 20,000 11,153 13,000 3,489 9,511 26.8%

610241 Records Retention 1,000 1,100 1,000 1,000 1,000 300 1,000 117 883 11.7%

610261 Consultants 50,000 31,000 75,000 75,000 96,000 22,593 90,000 6,300 83,700 7.0%

610261 Mapping - County 5,000 6,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 595 5,000 0 5,000 0.0%

610261 Planning Services 60,000 75,000 25,000 10,000 25,000 4,121 5,000 315 4,685 6.3%

610261 Legal Services 30,000 50,000 40,000 35,000 40,000 26,210 30,000 0 30,000 0.0%

610311 CAO - County - Services 16,000 13,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 11,000 0 11,000 0.0%

610312 Audit Services 7,500 - 7,500 - 10,000 6,000 7,700 0 7,700 0.0%

610351 Memberships 8,157 8,157 8,675 8,774 9,000 9,026 10,476 10,376 100 99.0%

610421 Public Notices 5,000 2,000 5,000 2,000 5,000 2,363 5,000 310 4,690 6.2%

610441 Assessor - County - Services - - 5,000 - 2,500 - 2,500 0 2,500 0.0%

610461 Special Departmental 500 500 500 500 1,500 515 1,500 29 1,471 1.9%

620041 Office Supplies 3,000 1,500 3,000 500 4,000 592 4,000 245 3,755 6.1%

215,657 213,257 218,775 176,837 243,500 103,042                200,876 23,295 177,581               11.6%

Internal Service Charges

Account Description 

630051 Office Lease/Rent 3,200 3,200 3,200 3,200 3,200 3,492 25,000 0 25,000 0.0%

630021 Communication Services 3,156 3,156 3,218 3,218 3,878 3,878 3,950 445 3,505 11.3%

630061 Information Technology 17,726 17,726 18,081 18,081 21,578 27,068 27,373 6,468 20,905 23.6%

630081 Risk Management 2,633 2,633 2,686 2,686 3,034 3,034 3,100 0 3,100 0.0%
26,715 26,715 27,185 27,185 31,690 37,472 59,423 6,912 52,511 11.6%

Contingencies 50,000 50,000 50,000 - 50,000 0 - 0.0%

EXPENSE TOTALS 715,037 618,797                768,345 587,250               796,843 549,346               793,880 151,103 592,777              19.0%

Revenue Ledger FY2016-2017 FY2017-2018 FY2018-2019

Adopted Estimate Adopted Estimate Adopted Actuals Adopted Actuals           Difference  Percent of Budget
As of 10-28-19

Intergovernmental 

Account Description

- Agency Contributions 

County of Alameda 196,115 196,114 196,115 196,114 196,948 196,948 192,127 0 192,127               0.0%

     Cities 196,115 196,114 196,115 196,114 196,948 196,948 192,127 113,383 78,744 59.0%
     Special Districts 196,115 196,114 196,115 196,114 196,948 196,948 192,127 192,127 - 100.0%

540,037 588,344 588,345 588,344 590,844 590,844               576,380 305,510 270,870              53.0%

Service Charges

- Application Fees 25,000 50,000 30,000 16,000 30,000 16,456 30,000 4,731 25,269                15.8%

Investments

- Interest - 2,000 - 4,000 - 12,314 7,500 0 7,500 0.0%

Fund Balance Offset 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 176,000 176,000                180,000 0 180,000              0.0%

REVENUE TOTALS 715,037 742,037               768,345 758,344               796,844 795,614                793,880 310,241 483,639              39.1%

OPERATING NET - 123,240 - 171,094 - 246,268 - 159,138 - -

UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 
   As of June 30th

FY2019-2020

FY2019-2020

ALAMEDA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
Regional Service Planning | Subdivision of the State of California 

Attachment 1

63



How Does Alameda LAFCO 
Want to Be Known? 

Examine the public value of Alameda LAFCO contributions to the community 
with a focus on key responsibilities: MSRs and Spheres of Influence 

7

Identify and Prioritize Key 
Objectives

ØWhere do you see Alameda LAFCO in 2025?

ØWhat are specific internal and external tactics 
for the next 18 months?

8

64



Work Plan Examine short-term
outcomes and priorities, clarify
expectations for staff and each other,
and identify measures of progress

9

Reflections on the Day 

10

65



Adjournment  

11

66


	StrategicPlanningWorkshop_AgendaItem1a_Attachment2.pdf
	Executed Contract Signature Page w.date correction.pdf
	QK Contract -signed




